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Thanks be to God! 

 



  



St Paul’s Lutheran Church & School History 

 

June 21, 1895 – First congregational meeting 

 Church name:  Evangelical Lutheran Church, St. Paul’s Congregation 

 Purchased 5 acres for $200; Church Building size - 14’ x 28’ x 40’ - Bell 

 Tower was 60 feet high - School Room 28’x10’ 

1896 – Lord’s Supper was celebrated four times per year 

 Two congregational meetings per year 

 5-6 services were in English 

1898 – Members of congregation can send children free of charge to school; 

 non-members 50 cents per month 

1899 – Built parsonage, barn, shed, well 

1900 – Ladies using the church paid $5/year and a cord of wood 

1901 – Staked out cemtery lots 

 Church scrubbed every three months 

1902 –  Bell made – Inscription in German: 

 “Evangelische” - (Evangelical) 

 “Lutherische” - (Lutheran) 

 “St Paul’s Gemeinde” - (Parish)  

January 15, 1902 “Gloria Dei” 

(Existing Bell Tower constructed in 1976) 

1903 – Second row in cemetery started 

1904 – Grave site for Adult - $2.00 and Child - $1.00 

1905 – Organist paid $25/year 

 Cemetery lots to be sold in order – Joint lot - $10.00 

 



1918 – Services in German and English 

1936 history shows English service at 9:30 and German at 11:00 

1922 –  Ladies Aid formed on May 31 

1949 - Joined Lutheran Women’s Missionary League (LWML) 

1924 –  Walther League begun – First meeting on November 30, 1924 

 Joined International Walther League in April 1925, changed to 

 Christian Generation of Tomorrow in 1970. 

 Singing Group “The Generation of Sound” with 58 members 

1925 – Voted to begin a Christian Day School and admit all outside (of 

 church). Teachers must be able to play organ, teach German and 

 English languages. 

 First school teacher, KJ Traugott, Property purchased for  

 teacherage (old Goldberg property) 

 Six baskets for taking collection, price $1 each 

1926 –  Voters Meetings held six times per year rather than four times 

 Thanksgiving service in the afternoon in German 

1927 –   Borrowed money to close the books for 1926– Collectors went out to 

 congregation members for funds 

 Thanksgiving service in the evening in English  

1928 – Continued evening services in German 

 Fourth of July service continued 

1929 –  Celebrated 50th Anniversary of Iowa District 

 Celebrated 400th Anniversary of Catechism  

 Evening service discontinued from Jan 1st to April 1st 

1930 –  Pastor explained why men should attend Voters Assembly: not 

 attending and joining is a sign of weakness.  Attending is a matter of 

 love, work of the Harvest and a burden, which should not be thrown 

 upon the shoulders of a few. 



 Alternated order of services in German and English 

1931 – Fourth of July service stopped; money in treasury sent to Synod debt 

1932 – Board recommends that every contributing member try to pay $1.00 

 or more per month towards salary during this Depression.  

1933 – Committee appointed to welcome all strangers attending our services 

 Approved a second teacher - if can be hired for $20/mo with room & 

 board, providing funds are raised by next meeting 

1934 –  Cemetery Society formed   

1935 –  40th Anniversary - 462 Souls, 344 Communicants, 82 Voters,  104 

Sunday School, 38 Day School  

 Teacher Traugott resigned.  Unanimous vote to hire a married man at 

 $900/mo including house  

1936 – Teacher Edger G. Steinbach – 59 students in the school 

 Young men encouraged to join Voters as soon as they are 21 

1937 – Ladies Aid granted permission to furnish a room in the Lutheran 

 hospital, Hampton 

 Rev. Grummer announced the occasion of passing total of 500 souls, 

 celebration on second Sunday in September  

1938 –  June 30, 1938 – St Paul’s Cemetery Portal and Fence 

 Good Friday morning service in German and evening in English 

1939 – Teacher Steinbach resigned; Pastor Grummer resignation 

1940 – Pastor E.L. Runge 

 Adopted the new hymnal Synod recommended; begin using as soon 

 as available.  

1941 – Church cornerstone laying service held in school  

 April 14, 1941 - Approved building a new church provided a sufficient 

 amount of money is subscribed.  May, 1941 - Enough money raised, 

 will build a new church East of parsonage. May 20, 1941 – Ground 

 Breaking for new church; Cost:  $22,000 - Dedication in November. 



 July 20, 1941 - Resolved to purchase a pipe organ. Cost: $2,500 from 

 Wangerin Organ Company, Milwaukee, WI.  In 1942 the manufacture 

 of musical instruments was banned in order to focus on the WW II 

 war effort.  The Wangerin-Weickhardt Company built wooden 

 airplane parts and other war-related goods.  The firm did not resume 

 organ building after the war.   

1942 – Old church pews given to a mission congregation of our synod, some 

old pews also placed in our new church balcony. 

 Building of sidewalks south of church, seeding and landscaping 

 Rules and regulations for church basement use 

1943 –  Congregation’s name changed from St. Paul’s Congregation to St. 

Paul’s Lutheran Church 

1944 – Lutheran Witness article regarding a Thanksgiving service when WW2 

peace is declared – Pastor and Deacons will prepare. 

1945 – 50th Anniversary on June 17: 590 Souls, 440 Communicants, 104 

Voting members. 

 Congregation to pay for choir material and allowed organist $5 to 

 purchase music. Church to be cleaned twice a year and all families 

 take a turn. 

1946 – Congregation resolved to collect funds for war sufferers. 

 Cistern filled at parsonage; water softener installed 

1947 – St. Paul’s and Trinity to place a marker at site of Beeds Lake Church 

 Committee chosen for preliminary building of school. 

1948 – Permission granted to organize a PTA 

 Pledges, bonds and sale of old school - $22,150.  Estimated cost of 

 new school $23,000.  Cornerstone laying on August 8th 

 Pastor E. L. Runge was granted a peaceful release. 

1949 – School dedication  

 Pastor A.T. Kellerman called as new pastor 

 Church seal purchased 



1950 – Fee of $10 for use of church basement 

 5 cents per mile for traveling expenses  

 587 Souls, Average Sunday attendance 290 

1951 – Parsonage remodeled - estimated cost $2000 

 New P.A. system installed 

 Sealed pledges by members to begin in 1952 

1952 –  Vacation Bible School – one year trial 

 School Board authorized to purchase small chairs and curtains in 

 basement for Sunday School  

1953 –  Mr. Frank Behnke granted a peaceful release as teacher 

 Trial period for ushering people out of church 

1954 –  Remodeling of teacherage and telephone installed 

Resolved to permit Rev. Kellerman to wear a white gown during 

church services 

 Special offering for “This is the Life” TV program 

1955 –  Beginning of Adult Bible Class 

 Hand rails up to Altar installed - Ordered four new pews - committee 

 charged to find a plan to enlarge church  

 School enrollment increased from 45 to 51 students 

1956 – Hired a third teacher for school  

 Carpeted center aisle of church 

 Lavatory and drinking fountain in lower room of school 

 66 students — 22 per teacher 

 Cemetery extended – three rows to the North, 20 ft to the West 

 Obtained from Roy Coons and William Schomburg 



1957 – Committees approved for school expansion to include an auditorium; 

 $25,000 pledged. Trustees authorized to borrow money as needed 

 for the addition.  

 Secretary of Congregation to be elected and not part of the teacher 

 call; the organist paid $3/service in the absence of a called teacher. 

1958 – Every Member Visitation Project administered by the Stewardship 

 Committee. 

 Trustees asked for anyone willing to loan money for the school 

 building  project.  

 Peaceful release to Rev. A. T. Kellerman 

 Mr. Curtis Hagen hired as teacher - principal 

1959 – Pastor Arnold Griesse called 

 Telephone installed in school 

 School Fund merged into Church General Fund with half of School 

 Fund to an Activity Fund and then to the Parent Teachers League 

 Weekly church bulletin passed out each Sunday 

1960 – Landscaping plan for church property 

 Transfer of caretaker of cemetery from Cemetery Society to the 

 Congregation. 

1961 – Luther Day held on Sunday October 29th at Iowa Falls High School 

 Auditorium 

 Estimates of $397 & $360 to re-decorate church interior & refinish 

 floor  

 91 children in school 

 Memorial Fund set up 

 Cemetery plot contracts changing to perpetual care 

 1962 –  Cemetery enlarged 

 Mothers’ Day observed by a special offering to Lutheran Children’s 

 Home in Fort Dodge 



1963 –  Iowa District East Camp fundraising project 

 Elders sent out 180 questionnaires for use of common cup:  

 41- individual, 20 - common cup, 19 - indifferent & 3 - matter of 

 conscience 

 PTL granted permission to install jungle gym 

 Purchased typewriter for church office 

 Hymnal racks in pews 

1964 – Common Cup used on first Sunday of every quarter 

 Teacher Curtis Hagen granted a peaceful release 

 Pastor Griesse resignation 

 Called Pastor Orlan G. Zuberbier 

1965 – Dale Haake called as new principal 

 75th Anniversary of Church and 40th Anniversary of School 

1966 –  Publishing of contributions by name discontinued 

 Resolved: All organists are under the supervision of Elders and all 

 who play for church or chapel services will be given opportunity to 

 practice.  

1967 – Committee formed to study matter of remodeling church front 

 “Special Thank Offerings” for birthdays 

1968 –  Addition to teacherage 

 Private telephone installed in church 

 Pastor Zuberbier granted a peaceful release 

1969 –  New drive-in cemetery 

 Three-year fundraising drive for a new parsonage 

 Called Pastor Robert A. Faga 

1970 –  75th Anniversary 



 Parsonage torn down and building plans for new two-story colonial 

 style home – Gerald Walrod Construction, Bid for $35,500 – Actual 

 cost was $37,473.71 

1971 –  Beginning of Radio Broadcast from KIFG, Iowa Falls 

1972 –  Baptized Members: 567, Communicant: 458, Synod Budget $15k 

 Pastor Faga granted a peaceful release 

1973 – Installation of Pastor Mervyn Bauer 

 Pastor Bauer worked with the “Ongoing Ambassadors for Christ” 

1974 –  Committee organized to study the remodeling of the front church 

entrance 

 Young Couples Club built volleyball, basketball and tennis court 

 Kitchen remodeled- project of LWML  

1975 – Resolved to remove old Bell Tower and construct new Narthex 

 addition, installed church elevator. 

 Started Mission Church near Rowan, Iowa 

1976 –  Resolved: No smoking in church building – later overridden so that 

 smoking was permitted in non-carpeted areas; No smoking during 

 meetings, unless agreed upon. 

Resolved – no food or beverage in narthex 

LWML – 85 active members – 10 Honorary members 

 426 communicant members, 518 baptized 

 Sunday average attendance – 331 

1977 –  Pastor Bauer granted a peaceful release, farewell on Feb 20, 1977 

Air conditioning installed in sanctuary 

Pastor Wayne Renning called as new pastor 

1978 –  New PA system 

 408 Communicant Members, 498 Baptized 

 Sunday average attendance - 297 



1979 –  Began locking church at night, grading and gravel for south parking lot 

 Four-year building project completed – $88,000 in contributions 

1980 –  386 Communicant members, 465 Baptized 

 Sunday average attendance - 265 

1981 –  Women allowed to speak at Voter’s Meetings 

 352 Confirmed Communicant members, 81 Baptized Unconfirmed 

1982 – Walnut carvings of church (in Narthex) donated by Don Koch for 

 Latimer Centennial 

 Altar ware was refinished 

 Mr. Behnke 50th year of teaching 

1983 –  Pastor Renning released from his call January 17, 1983 

 Installation of Pastor Dennis Arndt November 16, 1983 

 Average church attendance was 207 - Adult Bible Class 26 and Sunday 

 School 29 

 A problem of not enough room in the back of the church for families 

 with little children! 

1984 –  CGT’s name change to Lutheran Youth Fellowship (LYF) – authorized 

 to have an Easter breakfast 

 Evangelism Committee organized an “Every Member Visit” 

 Installation of Pew Cushions 

 April – Fixed bullet holes in the front door and side glass 

 Communicant members: 300 Baptized: 385   Avg attendance:  265 

1985 – Communion offered twice a month (First Sunday common cup, third 

Sunday individual cups) 

 June: Congregation 90th anniversary – Pastor Barry speaker, noon 

potluck,  2 pm service for 60th anniversary of school 

 Trying year – many homes facing financial difficulties 

 



1986 –  Sunday school children singing in church 

 VBS was part of SS program for 10 Sundays June – August 

 140 new hymnals purchased, sign up for members to also donate 

1987 –  Pre-School started. Began 3-5 year old Sunday School class, 26 

 children. 

 Ladies Mission Society passed a resolution to have all ladies of the 

 congregation help clean church in Spring and school in August – also 

 appreciate help from men. 

 315 Communicant members, 415 Baptized 

1988 – VBS had 65 students 

Memorial for picture display 

1989 – Voter’s meetings on Sunday afternoons 

 Joint Mission Festival with Trinity, Hampton, at Convention Center 

 Parking lot cemented 

 LLL project – individual mailboxes 

1990 –  Lenten Services were a pulpit exchange with pastors of the circuit 

 Sunday School picnic – first Sunday in June 

 Communicant Members: 299     Baptized: 394     Avg attendance: 243 

1991 – Pastor Arndt visits 25 shut – ins per month 

Elders and Stewardship –visit members who did not contribute in  

 Discussion about possibility of allowing women to be members of 

 Voters Body 

1992 – An additional LWML Evening Group was started ––Afternoon Group 

 continues 

 Senior Citizens group in Latimer first meeting held in church  

 basement 

1993 –  Pastor and Joyce honored for 10 years of service to St. Paul’s 

 Pastor Arndt declined salary and car increase due to church debt 



1994 – 25th Anniversary of Pastor Arndt’s ordination Sept 4th; Dr. Moermand 

preached 

 Centennial sign erected in front of church 

 School hosted a Japanese foreign exchange student for 6 months  

1995 – 100th Anniversary of St Paul’s congregation 

 Church Cook Book by LWML, Banners, monthly newsletters 

 LWML membership – 45 and 15 Honorary members 

$10,000 Centennial Mission Project to start up church in 

Independence, IA  

Cemetery Society project of American Flags along the South 

Cemetery fence for Memorial Day. 

100 lights on the altar rail – children joyfully singing and telling of 

Jesus on Christmas Eve. 

1996 –  Single Burial plot cost raised from $50 to $150 

 Eight new computers at school 

1997 – Carpet in church sanctuary replaced 

 Pastor Arndt granted a peaceful release in December 

1998 – Pastor Randall Bell Installation on July 19th, 1998 

 LYF Youth to National Youth Convention in Atlanta, GA 

1999 – 54 children in Sunday school, 36 in LYF 

 Pledge cards distributed for year 2000 proposed budget 

 LWML given permission to purchase electronic piano for church 

2000 –  Installation of new cemetery drive and new row in cemetery 

 Synodical goal - $17,500 

2001 –  Ended the use of money offerings listed in annual report 

 Preschool program ended 



 Baptismal Font moved to the back of the church so members will be 

 reminded of their baptism as they enter the sanctuary. 

 New sound system installed 

 Pastor Bell granted a peaceful release in December 

2002 –  Teacherage house listed for sale – $30,000 

 Women’s suffrage meeting approved in September 

2003 – 304 Confirmed Communicant members, 30 Baptized Unconfirmed, 

171 Families 

 Installation of Pastor Marvin Lorenz – March 2003 

 Every member visits continued 

 New Constitution and Bylaws in April 2003 

2004 – Trial basis of having confirmation students light church candles 

2005 –  Two signs for St Paul’s Lutheran Church on Hwy 3 and North of 

 Latimer 

 WOW – Worship on Wednesday began 

 Spanish Services began – once a month 

 286 Confirmed Communicant members, 25 Baptized Unconfirmed, 

 170 families 

2006 –  Scrip Program going well 

 Cemetery display sign erected 

 Decision to begin use of Lutheran Service Book Hymnals – two sets of 

 hymnals and liturgy books purchased for organist and accompanist 

2007 –  Lutheran Service Book Hymnal – LSB used exclusively for services 

 270 Confirmed Communicant members, 22 Baptized Unconfirmed 

 169 families 

2008 –  Cabinet and sink installed in Narthex – funds to be raised by LWML 



2009 – Adjusted amount for district mission fund from $6k to $5k for 2010 

only to be used in IA District East.  We are not reducing our mission 

goals; rather our congregation sustains the mission of the church by 

our support of the school budget, Spanish mission, radio broadcast, 

seminary students and WOW program. 

College students and family members living away from home 

counted as a separate family. 

2010 – Due to flooding, church basement flooring removed and seamless 

 surface installed.  

Feeding His Lambs has replaced the Thrivent Giving Program 

2011 –  Fifth year of Spanish services 

 240 Confirmed Communicant members, 32 baptized unconfirmed 

 166 families  

 Landscape plan for stillborn children in cemetery begun 

2012 –  Narthex painted by volunteers in 2012 

 LWML will re-decorate with new couch, chairs, curtains, etc. 

Ahead of retirement, Pastor Lorenz recommends calling a candidate 

from Fort Wayne Seminary.  We are the only church in the district to 

call a seminary student. 

2013 – Worship on Wednesdays (WOW) – 40-50 children attending weekly 

 Pastor Lorenz retirement and Farewell Sunday, July 28, 2013; first 

 Pastor to retire from our congregation 

 Memorial for Unborn Children in cemetery completed 

 Ordination and Installation of Pastor Travis Berg on August 3, 2013; 

 first Pastor called from Seminary 

2014 – Church constitution reviewed and standing resolutions updated 

 Bible Studies – After Church, 7 am at Dudley’s and Wednesdays for 

 young adults at parsonage 

 Trustees received letter regarding pipe organ repairs - estimate is 

 $80k – no action taken 



 Spanish Radio Broadcast on KLMJ with Trinity, Hampton 

 Gifts to children during their stages of Christian growth: Beginning 

 Sunday School: “The Children’s Bible”; Beginning Confirmation: 

 Luther’s Catechism; Confirmands: Lutheran Service Book Hymnal. 

2015 –  227 Confirmed Communicant members, 38 Baptized Unconfirmed 

 157 families 

 Benevolence Fund Policy approved, Legacy Fund and structure 

 finalized 

 Cemetery Plot increase from $150 to $250 per plot 

2016 –  Synod offering of $5k – If not met from contributions, balance from 

 general fund 

 Supported the overture “To condemn the conscription of women” 

 LCMS objection of women participating in the selective service 

 system. 

 WOW concluded in October – Avg attendance 46, will hold 3 sessions 

 next spring 

2017 –  Average church attendance in 2016 was 89. Special services 44, 

 Communion 62, Spanish service attendance 12 – 161 families 

New lighter-weight tables, chairs, and racks for church basement 

 Talks & Tastings at Rustic Brew in Hampton began – monthly on 

 Sunday evenings 

 New Kawai CPW digital piano  

2018 –  All memorial gifts will be announced and recorded in Voter’s minutes 

 and said gifts become the property of St. Paul’s Church  

2019 –  Voter’s meetings moved from Wednesday evenings to Sunday after 

 church 

Steven and Charlene Stortz – New principal and teacher at St. Paul’s 

Building Use Policy approved and added to Constitution 

 



2020 –  125th Anniversary postponed due to Covid. Will celebrate with 

 School 100th Anniversary and Church 130th in 2025 

Church Mission Statement Update: 

Our mission at St Paul’s Lutheran Church is to; by the power of the 

Holy Spirit grow in God’s Word, boldly witnessing the joy of the 

Gospel in service to Jesus Christ. 

School Mission Statement Update: 

St. Paul’s Lutheran School helps Christian parents in the strengthening 

of their child’s faith in Jesus Christ.  We provide a safe and loving 

environment by teaching the entire Word of God and preparing 

students through strong academics for careers and Service to God 

and others. 

 179 Confirmed Communicant members, 30 Baptized Unconfirmed 

 125 families 

 Church Sanctuary painted, picture railings for confirmands, pastors 

 and church history photographs in church basement. 

 Ongoing process of NLSA Accreditation 

 Cemetery gates and pillars installed  

Synod offering set at $2,500 for 2021 

2021 –  162 Confirmed Communicant members, 29 Baptized Unconfirmed 

 113 families 

 Kawai piano donated for church sanctuary 

2022 –  129 Confirmed Communicant members, 25 Baptized Unconfirmed 

 84 families 

 Pastor Berg granted a peaceful release 

 Weekly Communion commenced 

 ESV Study Bibles purchased for Bible Study/Sunday School 

 Cody and Jessica Collier – New school principal and teacher 



2023 –  Ordination and Installation of Pastor Peter Wagner, June 25 2023 

 121 Confirmed Communicant members, 28 Baptized Unconfirmed 

 76 families 

Agreement signed with Levsen Organ Company for a console rebuild, 

updating with new switches, new stop keys, new wiring and fusing, 

and new operating system. Pipe Organ Replacement Value $391,372.  

 Micro High School begun with 9th grade; Wi-Fi installed in church 

2024 –  122 Confirmed Communicant members, 29 Baptized Unconfirmed          

 73 families 

 Micro High School adds 10th grade 

 Repairs begun on 80-90 headstones in the cemetery – $80,000 quote 

2025 –  Pastor Adam Baumann accepts call to school to help with High 

School, Social Studies, and History. Installed on January 12. 

 Levsen Organ Company completes digital upgrade of 1942 Wangerin 

Pipe Organ – 8 Ranks, 20 Stops, with resurfaced top of keys in 

January 2025   Cost: $79,005 

130th Anniversary of St. Paul’s Church and 100th Anniversary of St. 

Paul’s School celebrated on August 3, 2025 

Stewardship Committee recommends $20k commitment as follows: 

$5,000 – Split between Fort Wayne/St Louis Seminaries 

$5,000 – Concordia NE for teacher scholarships or local 

students going into church work 

$5,000 – Mission Central, general missionary support 

$2,500 – District and Synod 

$2,500 – St. Paul’s School 

  



  



 

Give thanks to the LORD; Bless His name! 

For He is good; His steadfast love endures forever, 

    And His faithfulness to all generations. (Ps 100) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 


